Agenda - Climate Change, Environment and Rural
Affairs Committee

Meeting Venue: For further information contact:
Committee Room 3 - Senedd Marc Wyn Jones

Meeting date: 20 November 2019 Committee Clerk

Meeting time: 09.00 0300 200 6363

SeneddCCERA@assembly.wales

Pre-meeting - PRIVATE (09.00 - 09.15)

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of
interest
(09.15)

2 Scrutiny session on Bovine TB with the Minister for Environment,
Energy and Rural Affairs

(09.15-10.15) (Pages 1 - 25)
Lesley Griffiths AM, Minister for Environment, Energy and Rural Affairs

Christianne Glossop, Chief Veterinary Officer - Welsh Government

Attached Documents:
Research Brief

Paper - Welsh Government

fv- Cynulliad National
/ Cenedlaethol  Assembly for

Cymru Wales



General scrutiny session with the Minister for Environment, Energy

and Rural Affairs

(10.15-11.15) (Pages 26 - 47)
Lesley Griffiths AM, Minister for Environment, Energy and Rural Affairs
Christianne Glossop, Chief Veterinary Officer - Welsh Government

Tim Render, Director, Environment & Rural Affairs - Welsh Government

Gian Marco Currado, Director, Environment and Marine - Welsh Government

Attached Documents:
Research brief

Paper - Welsh Government

Motion under Standing Order 17.42 (vi) to resolve to exclude the

public from items 5 and 6 of today's meeting

PRIVATE (11.15 - 12.00)

5

Consideration of evidence received under items 2 and 3
(11.15-11.30)

Wild Animals and Circuses (Wales) Bill - Consideration of the

Committee's draft report
(11.30-12.00) (Pages 48 - 86)

Attached Documents:

Draft Report



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 2

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1



Minister for Environment, Energy and Rural Affairs
Climate Change, Environment and Rural Affairs Committee, 20 November 2019
Introduction

The Welsh Government launched a refreshed bovine TB Eradication Programme in
October 2017. Around the same time, the Climate Change, Environment and Rural
Affairs reported on bovine TB. | believe good progress has been made with the
implementation and delivery of our refreshed approach and also with regard to the
Committee’s recommendations which were entirely in keeping with our vision for
eradication.

In April | reported to the Assembly on progress made during the first calendar year of
implementation. My Statement included an update on the disease situation and
progress made against the actions outlined in the TB Delivery Plan, along with new
policies, such as those initiated in the Intermediate TB Area North in response to a
sustained spike in new TB incidents. | also set out further enhancements under
consideration, such as seeking to reduce the number of cattle shot on farm, and a
review of the TB compensation arrangements.

Disease picture

At the time of writing, the latest available TB figures cover the twelve months to June
2019.

1. The number of new TB herd incidents has remained steady compared to the
previous twelve months, however, the number of open incidents has
increased by 6% (Annex 2- Figure 1). Increased surveillance in unconfirmed
breakdowns and high sensitivity testing in persistent herds has meant herds
are under restriction for longer.

2. The number of new herd incidents per 100 tests in unrestricted herds
(incidence) between July 2018 and June 2019 has remained steady
compared against the previous twelve months.

3. The number of restricted herds per 100 live herds (herd prevalence) has
increased by just under 2% (Annex 2- Figure 2).

4. The number of animals slaughtered for TB control purposes has increased by
23% in the latest twelve months compared to the previous 12 months. The
majority of this increase (55%) is attributable to a rise in gamma testing to
increase the sensitivity of testing in persistent herds. There has been a rise in
the number of skin reactors (23%) and first-time inconclusive reactors and
dangerous contacts (18%) (Annex 2- Figure 3). This is largely caused by the
increased surveillance and test sensitivity rather than an upsurge in the
epidemic.

Recent trends should be interpreted with caution and in the context of the long term
trajectory and sustained improvements achieved over the last 10 years.

1
Pack Page 12



Progress against eradication milestones and targets

The 2017 Wales Eradication Target & Milestones policy statement set out the overall
target for reaching TB free status for Wales by 2041 and defined a number of
regional milestones towards TB eradication. The entire 24-year time span leading up
to the eradication date was divided into six-year quartiles which also serve as review
intervals. Other, shorter review intervals are considered when necessary. The plan
was based on the geographic division of Wales into Spatial Units and TB Areas,
rather than administrative counties.

Annual herd incidence trends are compared with the trajectory required to achieve
eradication or milestones set out for the first quartile (2017-23) of the eradication
plan. Spatial units can then be earmarked for transfer to a lower risk designation. On
current evidence, two (CE4, CL3) of the three Spatial Unit transfer targets have
shown incidence trends consistent with a transfer to a lower risk designation.
However, PN1 Spatial Unit does not look likely to meet the threshold required in this
current quartile (Annex 2 — Figure 4). At least one further Spatial Unit (PS1) can be
transferred from the High TB Area East to | Mid. On the evidence of the last 18
months, herd incidence is 15% below that of the previous six years.

Disease prevention and breakdown management

e TB reqgionalisation of Wales

A fundamental change to the way in which we tackle bovine TB in Wales began in
October 2017, with the introduction of a regionalised approach to TB eradication.
This step change resulted in Wales being divided into five TB Areas based on three
levels of disease incidence: a Low TB Area, two Intermediate TB Areas and two High
TB Areas. This approach allows tailored and bespoke policies to be implemented in
each TB Area to reflect the varied epidemiology and drivers of disease which are
specific to each area and allows focus to be given on regional priorities, for example
keeping TB out of the Low TB Area.

e Persistent TB breakdowns

We continue to learn lessons from the implementation of bespoke Action Plans in
persistent TB breakdowns, lasting 18 months or more. Policies within Action Plans
are subject to continuous monitoring and review by epidemiologists and vets to
ensure the right approach is being taken to eliminate TB in these long standing TB
breakdowns. We continue to refine our approach to ensure policies are properly
aligned with the risks, and also are proportionate to the disease situation on each
farm.

Since the start of the Action Plan intervention policy, restrictions have been lifted in
38 persistent breakdowns with Action Plans. 12 of these (8/21 in High West; 3/14 in
High East, 1/2 in | Mid) have subsequently seen recurrence of disease. These
recurrence rates are lower in comparison to similar herds who do not have action
plans. Resolved persistent breakdowns with action plans have a lower incident rate
compared to other closed breakdowns in the High TB Area. This indicates that we
are making progress in eradicating the diseases in some of the most complex TB
breakdowns.

2
Pack Page 13



e Informed Purchasing

We continue to highlight the importance of making wise purchasing decisions,
currently encouraging requests for TB history when selecting cattle a voluntary basis.
However, it is clear with 8 in 10 breakdowns in the Low TB Area and 3 in 10 in the
High TB Areas being primarily attributable to purchased animals, a voluntary
approach is not working. We are continuing to invest in technology to enable farmers
to obtain TB information to inform their purchasing decisions, with the development
of the website ibTB and alongside Defra, the Welsh Government is developing
proposals for a mandatory system. A consultation and legislative changes will be
required once clear proposals have been developed.

e Cymorth TB

From September 2019 any farmer eligible for a Cymorth TB visit will receive one,
unless they actively opt out of the offer.

The Welsh Government recognises the impacts of TB for farming families and
businesses. The Farming Community Network has started to develop advice,
support and signposting to farmers, however, uptake has been very low. To address
this, my officials are working across departments and with the Third Sector to
consider an agriculture-wide provision of mental health and wellbeing services for
Welsh farmers, where the focus is not purely on TB.

e On farm slaughter of TB reactors

| have listened to concerns raised by the industry around aspects of on farm
slaughter. On farm slaughter is sometimes unavoidable, for example where cattle
cannot be transported because heavily pregnant, for welfare reasons or because of
being in a medication withdrawal period and can therefore not enter the food chain.

We are working with industry and the veterinary profession to explore options to
reduce the number of TB cattle needing to be slaughtered on farm. A pilot starting
early next year, will allow farmers to request on farm euthanasia by lethal injection
under certain circumstances.

e Expanding the portfolio of diagnostic tests.

The Welsh Government has increased the use of supplementary blood testing to
improve the detection of TB infected cattle. Last year 57,000 gamma-interferon tests
were carried out, double the number performed three years earlier. Where
concurrent Johne’s disease is thought to be reducing test sensitivity a flexible
extended gamma-interferon test is used. In persistent herd breakdowns the IDEXX
antibody test is also used to target high risk animals which may not be responding to
the skin or gamma interferon tests.

The Welsh Government has developed and introduced a protocol for the use of non-

validated TB tests in TB breakdown herds. For example Actiphage, a diagnostic test
which identifies the presence of TB bacteria in blood or Polymerase Chain Reaction

3
Pack Page 14



(PCR) which can identify bacterial DNA in environmental samples. This is aimed at
supporting test development and enabling cattle keepers and their own vets to gain
additional information about the possible infection status of animals within their
herds.

Wildlife:

e Badger interventions

In some TB breakdowns where the view is that the transmission of infection between
badgers and cattle on the farm is contributing to the disease persistence the badger
trap and test operations are taking place with the consent of the landowners on
farms that meet the criteria set.

The latest APHA report on the delivery of badger trap and test operations on chronic
TB breakdown farms in Wales in 2018 has now been published
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-07/bovine-tb-badger-trapping-
and-testing-on-chronic-tb-breakdown-farms-2018.pdf

Badger trap and test operations were undertaken on 6 farms in 2018, and a total of
120 individual badgers were caught and sampled. Two phases of trapping were
conducted on three of the farms. Some badgers were therefore caught and sampled
more than once, resulting in 165 sampling events in 2018. The 165 sampling events
resulted in the euthanasia of 26 animals; 22 due to a positive field DPP test result
and four which had been caught previously and released but had subsequently
produced a positive laboratory result.

On 139 occasions the animal was released (137 tested negative to the field DPP,
while two could not be tested because it was not possible to obtain a blood sample).
Of the 137 occasions which resulted in negative tests, 112 badgers were vaccinated
before release. On the remaining 25 occasions the badgers had been vaccinated at
a previous sampling event and released without any further action.

e Badger Found Dead Survey

We continue with the Badger Found Dead survey and results are feeding into the wider
programme. In the Low TB Area of North Wales, the figures from the All Wales Badger
Found Dead Survey suggest badgers are not contributing to the disease.

e Vaccination update

A Badger Vaccination Grant is available to provide farmers, landowners, and other
organisations with the opportunity to apply for financial support (up to 50%) towards
badger vaccination against bovine TB, over 5 years.

Since the beginning of May this year (2019) the grant has allowed for the vaccination
of 185 badgers over a total area of 30.722km.

4
Pack Page 15


https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-07/bovine-tb-badger-trapping-and-testing-on-chronic-tb-breakdown-farms-2018.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-07/bovine-tb-badger-trapping-and-testing-on-chronic-tb-breakdown-farms-2018.pdf

e Gower project

The Welsh Government works with the South East Wales Regional Eradication
Board who are currently introducing a programme of badger vaccination on the
Gower. This is a great example of cooperation between farmers, local veterinary
practices, research team, the National Trust and Welsh Government. There are also
plans to introduce enhanced biosecurity and cattle control measures which together
with the vaccination of badgers aims to drive down levels of infection reducing the
number of cattle breakdowns in the area. Lessons learned can then be fed into
further development of the national eradication programme.

The Bovine TB Centre of Excellence

A new Sér Cymru Centre of Excellence for Bovine Tuberculosis for Wales is bringing
together international expertise with the aim of eradicating the cattle disease opened
at Aberystwyth University in 2018. The Centre aims to grow and develop academic
research expertise in Wales.

The Centre is led by Professor Glyn Hewinson who already has strong links with the
Welsh Government through his previous roles within the Animal and Plant Health

Agency (APHA). Most recently, the Centre hosted its first TB Conference which
focussed on both current and future TB tests for use in cattle and in the environment.

Lesley Griffiths AM
Minister for Environment, Energy and Rural Affairs

November 2019

5
Pack Page 16



Annex 1

Welsh Government response to the report of the Climate Change
and Rural Affairs Committee on the Refreshed TB Eradication
programme.

Recommendation 1

The Committee recommends that the Welsh Government should set a national
target date for Wales to be officially TB free and provide clarity on the process
for achieving this.

Recommendation 2

The Welsh Government should set interim targets for the eradication of the
disease in each of the three TB regions — high, medium and low.

Response to 1 & 2

In October 2017 the TB eradication programme in Wales implemented a regionalised
approach in which Low, Medium and High TB Areas were defined, allowing
interventions applied to be tailored to the disease situation specific to that area. In
common with many other aspects of the programme, the impact of this approach
and of the interventions contributing to it are being monitored and the continued
evolution of the programme will be informed by what is learnt from the results.

This regionalised approach is reflected in the TB targets adopted in December 2017.
This ambitious initiative aims to see Wales become officially TB free by 2041. Interim
targets, covering consecutive six-year periods, have been set for each of the TB
Areas. This approach provides for defined areas to achieve and maintain TB
freedom at different points in time, seeking to create an ever-expanding area of TB
freedom in Wales and the momentum that would come with this.

Recommendation 3

The Welsh Government should carry out more research into the possible risks
of spreading TB from larger herd sizes and slurry management practices.
Being able to include advice on both of these issues in guidance from the
Welsh Government would enhance the support offered to farmers in dealing
with this disease.

The possible risk that TB could be spread through the application of slurry on
agricultural land is a high profile issue and evidence is required to inform policy
development. Working with the Northern Ireland Department of Agriculture,
Environment and Rural Affairs (DAERA) and the Department of Agriculture, Food
and the Marine (DAFM) in Ireland, Defra (including Welsh Government) has funded
a study to gather evidence regarding the prevalence and persistence of viable M.
bovis in slurry and similar matrices. The outcomes of this are due towards the middle
of 2020.

6
Pack Page 17



Recommendation 4

The Welsh Government should maintain a watching brief and explore all
options for an effective testing regime which is proportional to the risks
identified.

The tuberculin skin test remains the foundation on which the cattle testing
programme is based. Wales has led the way in the targeted use of the interferon
gamma test as a complementary test. Recently, in persistent breakdown herds, the
flexible-extended gamma interferon test and the IDEXX Antibody test are also used
to detect infected animals, which may otherwise be masked by the presence of other
mycobacteria, or are eliciting an antibody immune response, rather than the more
usual cell-mediated response.

The programme remains fully engaged both with the GB TB research and
development programme - Sér Cymru Centre of Excellence for Bovine TB and with
individual test developers in order to ensure that it makes the best use of those tests
which have been robustly demonstrated to offer additional benefits in terms of the
testing portfolio.

The targeted use of tests best suited to specific circumstances has always been, and
will remain, a fundamental component of the eradication programme. The
regionalised approach very much reflects this, providing for the use of different
combinations of tests in different disease situations.

Recommendation 5

The Welsh Government should engage industry as far as possible in the
development of an online biosecurity package to ensure that Welsh farmers
can develop farm-specific measures that will add value to its efforts to control
and eradicate the disease.

Biosecurity has always formed a key part of our eradication programme. Following
consultation, the Welsh Government committed to developing a standardised online
package to help farmers implement improved husbandry and biosecurity practices.
We are now in the process of developing a biosecurity app with an Industry Group.
Industry led plans are underway to pilot the app on a range of Welsh farms with the
intention of making it more widely available once properly user tested.

Guidance on biosecurity standards has also been developed and is available on the
Welsh Government website. Further to this, developments are underway to
extensively improve the already established TB Hub website to cover Wales’ needs,
and this will include a wide range of biosecurity advice.

Recommendation 6

The Committee supports the Welsh Government’s proposal to encourage
Informed Purchasing, also known as Risk Based Trading. A system of Risk
Based Trading should be taken forward voluntarily in the first instance with
the industry and livestock markets. This should be kept under review and, if
necessary, introduced on a mandatory basis.

7
Pack Page 18



Risk Based Trading schemes in New Zealand and Australia have greatly contributed
to TB eradication. We have already offered grant funding to livestock markets to
allow them to update equipment to display TB information. | also encourage farmers
to sign up to a Cattle Health Certification Standards (CHeCS) TB scheme as this will
help buyers minimise the risk of introducing disease to their herd and herds
classified as the lowest risk will be exempt from some of our TB controls.

The ibTB mapping tool is a useful way for farmers to better understand the disease
picture in their area where they are sourcing cattle from. Work is underway to
enhance the site to make it a more useful informed purchasing tool.

These voluntary approaches will be kept under review. In the long-term it is likely
only the introduction of a mandatory system will ensure that TB information is
provided at the point of sale. We are therefore exploring ways this can be introduced
in conjunction with Defra.

Recommendation 7

The Welsh Government’s proposals to introduce targeted badger removal in
cases of chronic breakdown herds must be scientifically monitored and
reviewed and either adapted or stopped if it is shown that is does not prevent
the transmission of Bovine TB from wildlife to cattle. Any measures taken on a
trial basis must include hard borders and adequate safeguards against the risk
of any possible perturbation of the wildlife population.

The Animal and Plant Health Agency (APHA) were commissioned to estimate the
proportion of the target population of badgers trapped on each farm and to attempt to
detect any signs of social perturbation arising from these small scale interventions.
The choice of methods available was limited by the need to confine all field activities
to the target farm, therefore data collection focused on genotyping hair samples from
hair traps and captured badgers on the three farms where badger trap and test
operations were undertaken in 2017.

The attached report details the methodology applied and analysis of the results.
https://gov.wales/bovine-tb-badger-trapping-and-testing-chronic-tb-breakdown-
farms-2018

The genetic profiles were successfully extracted from the majority of hair samples
from trapped badgers suggesting high trapping efficiency on three respective farms,
but it was not possible to draw any conclusions regarding social perturbation. This
was mainly due to the small scale of the interventions. That will remain a significant
challenge.

Therefore we are aware of the limitations of this method and the inconclusive results
produced, we are looking to monitor for perturbation by proxy using cattle data.
APHA are capturing information on the long term efficacy of the policy and its impact
on disease and aim to monitor cattle disease parameters (herd level & animal level).
They will continuously gather data and monitor when sufficient data is available. This
will be done by comparing case herds against control herds. This data will be
gathered using existing APHA systems but again it is not known for how long this
would need to take place nor how many match pairs would need to be compared.

8
Pack Page 19


https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgov.wales%2Fbovine-tb-badger-trapping-and-testing-chronic-tb-breakdown-farms-2018&data=02%7C01%7CLydia.Chambers%40gov.wales%7Cefc30c7edebe4b7b8f6b08d7175e13d1%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C637003565130408621&sdata=noumXEVeXT737g485bHL691jQAPtqpgM9Ty49NHmCl0%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgov.wales%2Fbovine-tb-badger-trapping-and-testing-chronic-tb-breakdown-farms-2018&data=02%7C01%7CLydia.Chambers%40gov.wales%7Cefc30c7edebe4b7b8f6b08d7175e13d1%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C637003565130408621&sdata=noumXEVeXT737g485bHL691jQAPtqpgM9Ty49NHmCl0%3D&reserved=0

Whole genome sequencing of M. bovis isolates from infected badgers as well as
infected cattle will improve our understanding of infection transmission on the farms.

Recommendation 8

The Welsh Government should report to the Committee 12 months after the
programme of targeted badger removal begins to present its findings. We
expect the Welsh Government to make its data publicly available in order to
ensure transparency in their decision-making and review processes.

The APHA report on the delivery of badger trap and test operations on chronic TB
breakdown farms in Wales in 2018 has been published on the Welsh Government
website and sent to relevant stakeholders, including the Committee. A copy is
available at the following link:
https://gov.wales/bovine-tb-badger-trapping-and-testing-chronic-tb-breakdown-
farms-2018

It is worth mentioning, that the work undertaken to evaluate Farm Level Interventions
is conceived as a longitudinal study and as such, requires time to gather data and
further consideration to determine the suitable follow-up period.

As stated in recommendation 7, APHA are capturing information on the long term
efficacy of the policy and its impact on disease and aim to monitor cattle disease
parameters (herd level & animal level). They will continuously gather data and
monitor when sufficient data is available.

This will be done by comparing case herds against control herds. This data will be
gathered using existing APHA systems but again it is not known for how long this
would need to take place nor how many match pairs would need to be compared.
Whole genome sequencing of M. bovis isolates from infected badgers as well as
infected cattle will improve our understanding of infection transmission on the farms.

Recommendation 9

The Welsh Government and Defra should ensure that the guidance which is in
place to facilitate cross border liaison is robust, particularly in relation to the
exercising of wildlife controls, including badger removal and culling. This
guidance must be kept under review by the Welsh Government and Defra.

The committee were provided with a copy of the Defra guidance governing the
licensing of culls in England, published in December 2015.

Information from Defra, report on Assessing the effects of the industry led badger
culling in England on the incidence of bTB in cattle 2013 — 2017 indicates that no
lasting adverse impact was detected in the 2km buffers zones following four years of
badger controls in Gloucester and Somerset and two years in Dorset.

https://www.nature.com/articles/s41598-019-49957-6

Incidence rates in the Gloucestershire and Dorset intervention buffer zones were
lower than in comparison buffer zones each year since culling started. Incidence

9
Pack Page 20


https://gov.wales/bovine-tb-badger-trapping-and-testing-chronic-tb-breakdown-farms-2018
https://gov.wales/bovine-tb-badger-trapping-and-testing-chronic-tb-breakdown-farms-2018
https://www.nature.com/articles/s41598-019-49957-6

rates in the Somerset intervention buffer zone were higher than in comparison areas
in the first year after culling started but were similar to comparison zones in years
two, three and four.

Recommendation 10

The Welsh Government should pay farmers a reasonable compensation sum
for cattle slaughtered as part of the TB eradication programme. This sum
should be kept under review, in consultation with stakeholders.

Welsh Government officials have begun work on identifying options for changing the
TB compensation system. These options have been presented to the TB programme
Board and further development of some of these options will take place before a
proposed way forward is presented to stakeholders as part of a consultation process.
Any changes to the compensation system that are implemented will ensure that a
reasonable sum of compensation will be paid for cattle slaughtered, within the
constraints of current budgets. Any new TB compensation system would also aim to
also incentivise compliance and best practice.

Recommendation 11

The Welsh Government must ensure that current funding received from the
European Union for bovine TB testing and other measures will be guaranteed
within future Welsh Government budgets.

We are currently in discussions with UK Government to ensure that this funding will
continue post Brexit. We are still discussing detailed aspects of this funding stream
with the Treasury.

Recommendation 12

The Welsh Government must seek urgent assurances from the UK
Government that the Bovine TB status of the UK will not affect continuing
access to the EU Single Market.

In order to export to the EU post Brexit, UK Government with our support have
applied to become a listed third country as was the case back in March and we were
approved on Friday 11t October (should these arrangements be necessary). During
the last vote the UK Government were required to dynamically align by keeping pace
with EU legislation on animal health, welfare and food & feed safety for 9 months,
and this is also the case now. With third country listing being obtained there is no
reason to believe the TB status of the UK will affect access to the EU Single Market.
All businesses who wish to trade with the EU have to ensure their products come
from a farm which is TB free and under no restrictions. The UK can export to the EU
without being non officially TB free, the EHC requires the farm to be TB free and not
the country.

10
Pack Page 21



Annex 2

731 breakdowns in 12
months to 30/06/2018; 623
open breakdowns at end of
Q2 2018

——— Open incidents end of quarter ———Rolling average open incidents

New incidents in quarter Closed incidents in quarter 730 breakdowns in 12
= = =Rolling average new incidents months to 30/06/2018; 667

1,000 e open breakdowns at end of

] ]

300 ! : 7 Q22019
200 | y :
700 I h i
600 :
500 I : i
400 : b :
300 = ‘ﬂ’ I :: I
200 |7\ N '%“ﬁ‘-&.a‘#_—mﬂ_‘;.v :
100 I h i
0 ! : !
)

38‘8@58855‘88&'5‘88538883888888863:885%886&
2010 | 2011 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2005 | 2006 | 2007 | 2418 2019!

Source: APHA surveillance data at September 2019

Figure 2: Wales adjusted TB timeline Q1 2009 — Q2 2019

6.61 new TB incidents per 100 OTF
WHT in 12 months to 30/06/2019;
6.59 new TB incidents per 100 OTF WHT in 10.96% of all live herds under
12 months to 30/06/2018; 10.80% of all restriction at any point of 12-month
live herds under restriction at any point of period
12-month period

Number of new incidents per 100 live herd tests

20 - Z'_
\ 1
18 : I
Number of herds under restriction due to bTB incident per 100 live ! W I
16 herds at end of reporting period : W I
I
14 Number of reactors per 1,000 animals tested I : I
I

I
12 | h |
| h |
10 - 1 h |

]
8 - '
I
6 I
I
4 y !
' [

| h
2 | h :
0 ! " 1

- - - - - - - - eyl - -

0‘885‘03850‘885588365830835d88368|856g530‘3:
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 20:1? zﬂm 20191

Source: APHA surveillance data at September 2019

Figure 3 — Animals slaughtered for purposes of TB control in Wales, Q1 2009 — Q2
2019

11
Pack Page 22



12,970 animals slaughtered for TB control in 12
months to 30/06/2019; this included 6,096 skin

10,553 animals slaughtered for TB control in 12 reactors or repeat IRs and 3,408 gamma reactors

months to 30/06/2018; this inclced 5,5561 skin
reactors or repeat IRs and 2,084 gamma reactors /
e —————t———

h
B Gamma reactor M 1xIR & DC m 2xIR & 3xIR  m Skin Reactor : I

MQ2030401 20304 N A203 0401 Q2030401020304 0102030401 020304010203 0401 []2:(13 04 01 a3 04 a1 Q2
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 20!1_!_ 28 2019

Source: APHA surveillance data at September 2019

Figure 4 - Wales TB Regionalisation map with status of eradication milestones for
first quartile (2017-23) of Wales TB Eradication Plan

CL3 - transfer to Low TB Area

Low TB Area: Officially
Tuberculosis Free Status by
2023

PN1 - transfer to ITBA

Spatial Unit earmarked for transfer:

O Not on target
O On target

¢ ™ Ontarget (not included in

P51 - transfer to ITBA
. / original plan)

HTB East & HTB West: 50%
reduction in incidence 2017-
2013 compared with 2011-17

CE4 — transfer to ITBA

Source: APHA surveillance data at September 2019

12
Pack Page 23



Ag en d a Ite m 3 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 26



Minister for Environment, Energy and Rural Affairs

Climate Change, Environment and Rural Affairs Committee, General Scrutiny
of the Environment, Energy and Rural Affairs portfolio

1.

2.

This paper sets out some of my priorities and recent actions related to my
portfolio, ahead of my appearance before the Committee on 20 November.

A separate detailed paper has been provided on our Bovine TB Eradication
Programme.

Brexit Preparedness

3.

4.

Brexit has been at the top of my portfolio’s priorities for over three years now.

As | have said on a number of occasions, exiting the EU without a deal would
have an immediate and long term catastrophic impact on rural communities.

| am confident we have done and continue to do everything under our control
to mitigate the impacts of any no deal.

My portfolio currently has a suite of Brexit Preparedness projects in operation
(74), a significant number of which are being carried out on a UK-wide basis.
| have been tracking progress on these regularly and reporting, with my
colleagues, to the First Minister’'s Cabinet Sub Committee on EU Exit.

The majority of no deal preparation projects were on track for a 31st October
exit. Officials will continue to work closely with Defra and other UK
administrations to finalise the remaining projects, should they be needed in
January. We continue to apply pressure to the UK Government for clarity on
the extent of additional budget that will be made available to help manage a
‘No Deal’ outcome

. The projects cover a range of sectors and needs including establishing new

regulatory and operational systems as well as contingency planning. The
systems developed would provide a functional, baseline system, which could
be operational on day 1.

There are also many projects underway which impact whether we leave with
or without a deal including establishing positions on future UK-wide
governance arrangement and future policy such as in the areas of trade,
environment, land management and marine and fisheries.

We have also developed contingency plans for sectors across my portfolio
and tested them to ensure appropriate mitigating measures are in place for
day one, including sheep, fisheries, water and food, in collaboration with

administrations across the UK. These will continue to be kept under review
as the leaving date changes to take into account the seasonal implications.

10.Meanwhile, the UK will be negotiating a new trade agreement with the EU

and Third Countries which will have to be our main focus going forward.

1
Pack Page 41



There will also be major challenges to our capacity and capability. Over 7,000
functions will be returning to the Welsh Government from Brussels — the
majority of those in relation to agriculture and the environment.

Climate Emergency

11.In May 2019 the National Assembly was the first Parliament in the world to
declare a climate emergency. Since then we have announced further
Government investment and published a series of major policy proposals,
which will re-focus investment towards tackling the climate and ecological
emergency.

12.We have accepted the advice of the UK Committee on Climate Change
(UKCCC) to increase Wales’s 2050 emissions reduction target to 95% and
will ask the National Assembly to put this into law next year. We have also
announced our ambition to work with UKCCC and other stakeholders to
develop a more ambitious net zero target, going further than UK Government
or any other UK administration.

13. Earlier this year the Welsh Government published Prosperity for all: A Low
Carbon Wales, which contains 100 policies and proposals across Ministerial
Portfolios to meet the first carbon budget (2016-2020) and consequently the
2020 interim target.

https://gweddill.gov.wales/topics/environmentcountryside/climatechange/emis
sions/prosperity-for-all-a-low-carbon-wales/?lang=en

14.In October we held a climate change conference in response to the Climate
Emergency, where 300 people came together including business leaders,
public sector and third sector. As part of the conference organisations
started to pledge to take action with us to join the collective response to the
climate emergency.

15.To coincide with the conference, we set out some of the things we are doing
to tackle climate change:

https://gov.wales/what-is-the-welsh-government-doing-to-tackle-climate-
change

16.We see this as a starting point towards Wales'’s contribution to the United
Nations Conference of the Parties (COP 26) which will be held in Glasgow in
2020 and the publication of our next All Wales Delivery Plan in 2021. We
have committed to bring people back together again next year around the
time of COP26, to share what Wales is doing with the world.

17.Tackling climate change is my overarching priority for which the majority of
the activity referred to in this paper is set against.

2
Pack Page 42


https://gweddill.gov.wales/topics/environmentcountryside/climatechange/emissions/prosperity-for-all-a-low-carbon-wales/?lang=en
https://gweddill.gov.wales/topics/environmentcountryside/climatechange/emissions/prosperity-for-all-a-low-carbon-wales/?lang=en
https://gov.wales/what-is-the-welsh-government-doing-to-tackle-climate-change
https://gov.wales/what-is-the-welsh-government-doing-to-tackle-climate-change

Clean Air Plan

18.We are developing our Clean Air Plan for Wales which will support delivery of
the Prosperity for All commitment to reducing emissions and delivering vital
improvements in air quality, to support healthier communities and better
environments.

19. The Plan will set out how we will work collaboratively across Government and
sectors, bringing together existing commitments and new actions to achieve
air quality improvements, and explain how air quality policy aligns with wider
Welsh Government policy and the priorities and principles we will apply in
delivering the Plan.

20.We will be consulting on the draft Plan in December 2019, with a view to
publish the final Plan early 2020.

Sustainable Farming and Our Land (SFaol)

21.For farming, we only have to look to the recent wetter winters and drier
summers to see the impact of Climate Change. There are pressures too on
our biodiversity and to ensure wider quality of our environment, our water and
our air. These are things that affect everyone in Wales and again farming
has a major role to play in securing a sustainable future.

22.To that end, the consultation on Sustainable Farming and Our Land closed
on 30 October. My officials are currently collating and analysing the final
number of responses, to which there were over 2,000.

23.In the coming months we will launch the co-design programme, to further
engage with the farming sector. Any further steps afterwards will take into
consideration the responses to the consultation and Brexit developments.

24.0nce more is known from the UK Government about future trade deals and
budget allocation, we will be able to complete the modelling required. We will
do this before this consultation process can be concluded and new support
arrangements put in place.

25.Many farmers will be dependent on future support and we are dependent on

farmers delivering many of the outcomes we are trying to secure. | want
farmers to be at the heart of this conversation.

Agriculture Pollution

26.Wide ranging evidence supports the need to take action to tackle agricultural
pollution across Wales. The State of Natural resources Report 2016
(SoNARR) highlights the detrimental impact agricultural pollution is having
throughout Wales. Natural Resources Wales’ (NRW) current consultation on
‘Challenges and Choices’ further confirms agricultural pollution is one of the
main reasons waterbodies fail to meet standards. The consultation lists 113

3
Pack Page 43



waterbodies where diffuse agricultural pollution is contributing to failure of
Water framework Directive standards.

27.Poor agricultural practice is also leaving stretches of our rivers devoid of fish.

Our rural communities, which depend on tourism, angling and food industries,
must be protected. We must also protect the 80,000 people in Wales who
rely on private water supplies.

28.Improved nutrient management is essential to reduce pollution levels. It is for

these reasons | have proposed regulations across Wales to tackle
agricultural pollution. As well as providing a baseline to tackle agricultural
pollution, it is recognised regulations throughout the whole of Wales could
help to meet other key objectives on air quality and reducing greenhouse gas
emissions.

29.Farms operating to the best practice standards advocated through voluntary

approaches should easily be able to meet the regulatory floor. The proposed
regulations are subject to the outcome of a Regulatory Impact Assessment
and all available evidence. Itis intended they will apply to all holdings from
January 2020, with transitional periods for some elements to allow farmers
time to adapt and ensure compliance.

Tree Planting

30. We acknowledge that trees are not currently being planted in sufficient

31

numbers and recognises that increasing forestry cover is vitally important to
enabling a vibrant forestry industry, countering carbon emissions and
mitigating the effects of climate change.

.Woodlands for Wales, the Welsh Government’s strategy for woodlands and

trees, was revised in 2018 and includes the aim of increasing woodland cover
by at least 2,000 hectares per year from 2020. Tree cover in the wider
environment, on farms and in the rural landscape, and in and around towns
and cities should also increase.

32.The First Minister's manifesto commitment for a new National Forest will help

support the aims of Woodlands for Wales, as well as priorities relating to
biodiversity, commercial forestry, construction, community cohesion and
regeneration, and health and well-being. The Welsh Government is
considering how to maximise these economic and environmental benefits
and will work in collaboration with the public sector and other partners to
identify preferred sites for planting and potential demonstrator projects next
year.

33.Natural Resources Wales (NRW) are progressing an umbrella Woodland

Creation Programme which comprises of existing programmes such as Plant!
and support for the Glastir Woodland Creation Scheme, as well as new
projects on the Welsh Government Woodland Estate (WGWE) such as
compensatory planting for losses arising from wind farm schemes, and
extending the WGWE through land acquisition. Work is underway to develop

4
Pack Page 44



overarching programme documentation and governance, as well as specific
project plans for the new elements.

Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management - New National Strategy

34.0n 24 June | launched a consultation on a new National Strategy for Flood
and Coastal Erosion Risk Management in Wales. The consultation closed
on 16 September and my officials are now working on analysing responses
with a view to publishing the final Strategy in 2020. The Strategy builds on
the Welsh Government commitment to invest over £350 million in flood and
coastal erosion risk management over the life of this Government.

35.1 announced the publication of the new flood and coastal erosion risk
management (FCERM) Project Appraisal Guidance for Wales in June 2019.
This provides guidance on good practice for FCERM appraisals and
producing Business Cases for investment decisions in Wales.

Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)

36.From 7 January 2019, it has been a requirement that all new developments in
Wales of more than one house or where the construction area is 100 square
metres or more, require Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) for the
management of surface water. The SuDS must be designed and built in

accordance with the statutory SuDS standards published by Welsh
Ministers.

37.SuDS schemes must be approved by the local authority acting in its SuDS
Approving Body (SAB) role before construction work begins. The SAB will
have a duty to adopt compliant SuDS so long as it is built and functions in

accordance with the approved proposals, including any SAB conditions of
approval.

38.The increased prevalence of SuDs is going to play a key role not only in the
protection of our environment and the promotion of biodiversity, but also in
our adaptation to climate change and our resilience to the risk of flood.

Marine and Fisheries

39.We have been making final preparations for the formal adoption of the first
ever National Marine Plan for Wales. This is the culmination of a significant
amount of work and will enable for the first time a coherent plan led approach
to managing the sustainable development of our seas.

40.1 also launched the first Marine Evidence Strategy, developed in collaboration
with NRW. This Strategy will support the delivery of marine evidence to
implement, monitor and evaluate the marine policies and plans of the Welsh
Government and NRW. We look to restore and conserve marine

5
Pack Page 45



biodiversity, promote sustainable marine use, protect our coastlines and
enhance our coastal communities.

41.In a policy area so entwined in European regulation, Brexit has dominated
much of the work in this policy area. We have been putting in place the plans
and resources to ensure we can continue to enforce our fisheries on day one,
including mitigated against a no deal scenario. We have also been working
with partners across Wales and the UK to ensure fisheries businesses
understand what they need to do to be able to continue to trade. Putting in
place new systems and processes where possible, while working on a
contingency support scheme to help fishers cope with the changes.

42.1 remain committed to developing a Future Fisheries Policy, in collaboration
with stakeholders, as we exit the European Union. | consulted over the
summer through the Brexit and Our Seas consultation, the first stage in a
longer conversation about the future of the fishing industry and | will be
making a statement in the autumn.

Food Action Plan

43.0n 23 July, | launched the consultation regarding future proposals for the
food and drink industry in Wales. The consultation closed on the 15 October
2019. 81 responses to the consultation were received.

44 We want to build on the achievements and successes of the previous Food
and Drink Strategy and its Action Plan. In 2018 the industry achieved a
turnover of £6.8bn against a target of £7bn by 2020.

45.The consultation paper set out three strategic aims: to grow our businesses;
to benefit our people and society; and to create and communicate a global
reputation of Wales as a Food Nation.

46. Analysis of the consultation is currently underway, and a summary response
will be published as part of the normal process in due course.

Lesley Griffiths AM
Minister for Environment, Energy and Rural Affairs
November 2019

6
Pack Page 46



Ag en d a Ite m 6 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 48



	Agenda
	2 Scrutiny session on Bovine TB with the Minister for Environment, Energy and Rural Affairs
	Paper - Welsh Government

	3 General scrutiny session with the Minister for Environment, Energy and Rural Affairs
	Paper - Welsh Government

	6 Wild Animals and Circuses (Wales) Bill - Consideration of the Committee's draft report

